
 

 
 

October 5, 2020 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
October 5, 2020 at 6:00 PM by using ZOOM—virtual meeting software (due to the COVID-19 
pandemic) for Facebook Live Streaming and in person in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams 
Street, Plymouth, NC. Commissioners Johnson, Phelps, Sexton and Walker were present.  Also 
present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett 
and Finance Officer Missy Dixon.  Commissioner Riddick was not in attendance.  
 

 Chair Phelps called the meeting to order. Commissioner Sexton gave the invocation; Tax 
Administrator, Ms. Sherri Wilkins led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:  Chair Phelps deleted Item #10 Compensation Study 
Update. This will discussed at the October 26 recessed Board of Commissioners meeting. Chair 
Phelps also deleted the Closed Session for attorney-client privilege NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3). 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA:  Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda: 
 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, 
to be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Minutes 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers 
d) Proclamation: National Breast  Cancer Awareness Month 
e) Washington County 911 and Nash County 911 MOU 
f) FY2022 Public Transportation Grant Authorization 
g) Lease Resolution with RCCHC for Creswell Primary Clinic  

 
Commissioner Walker seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

  
 RECOGNITION FOR RETIREE:  Chair Phelps presented a Certificate of Appreciation to 
Sheriff Barnes for Ms. Lisa Patrick who retired July 1, 2020 with 20 years of service to the County. 
 
 PUBLIC FORUM:    None. 
 
 REVALUATION DISCUSSION—SCHEDULE OF VALUES:  Mr. Gene Roundtree, Revaluation 
Appraiser and Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator spoke to the Board and noted they have presented 
the Schedule of Values for 2021 effective for Tax Year 2021 to the Commissioners tonight.  Mr. 
Roundtree briefly went over the contents of the book.  Any questions should go through Ms. Wilkins and 
she will get them to the appraisers.  Commissioner Johnson asked Ms. Wilkins if there are any surprises 
that she saw this time that the Board should be aware of.  Ms. Wilkins said she would have to defer to Mr. 
Roundtree.  Mr. Roundtree says they are to bring values up to market value. They did field work and took 
pictures.  Farm values are basically the same. There will be informal appeals that go to the Tax Office to 
try to be resolved before having to bring them to the Board.  Commissioner Johnson asked were there any 



 

new statutes that would cause a variance.  Mr. Roundtree said no they are the same as before.  Chair 
Phelps said surrounding counties had significant decreases. Commissioner Phelps asked Mr. Roundtree if 
he saw that here. Mr. Roundtree said there were some decreases but it seemed that most were holding their 
own.  At the end of December Mr. Roundtree said he will be able to determine if the County will gain or 
lose tax value. Commissioner Sexton asked about the solar farms and how they are valued.  There was a 
brief discussion on this. 
 
 Chair Phelps stated that the public hearing on the Schedule of Values will be October 26 @ 6:00 
PM in the Commissioners’ Room. 
 
 STATUS OF EDDIE SMITH SERVICE DISTRICT CONVERSION: Mr. Potter, CM/CA spoke to 
the Board.   
 
 Mr. Potter, CM/CA said there was a request to bring this back to this meeting.  Digitization of the 
documents has been completed and ready for review.  Mr. Potter said he would like the conversion to take 
place in coordination with the annual Soil & Water Advisory Committee in February and have info for the 
upcoming year’s budget. 
 
 Mr. Potter said will keep the Board updated as the process moves along. 
 
 FUNDING FOR SCHOOL SRO’S:  Dr. Linda Carr, Washington County School (WCS) 
Superintendent spoke to the Board and thanked the Board for letting her attend in person.  She started off 
by saying the State will often match money and she would like to apply for another SRO for a total of 
three (3).  Dr. Carr said she is asking the County for local funds. Dr. Carr said WCS would like the County 
to pay for ½ of a SRO and WCS will pay for ½.  Mr. Potter stated that this would be a total of three (3) 
SRO’s with the County paying for one (1). 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to fund ½ of the salary of a SRO position. 
Commissioner Sexton seconded.  Discussion ensued.  Mr. Potter said WCS would like to 
change the structure.  Commissioner Johnson asked Mr. Potter to bring the numbers to the next 
meeting.  Mr. Potter went on to say that the cost of a SRO is $57,000/ea.  The County is paying 
1/8th of that where now WCS wants the County to pay for 1/3rd.  Commissioner Johnson 
amended her motion to state that in addition to the Board funding ½ of the current SRO 
position, the County will now fund WCS with an additional ½ for a 3rd SRO and directed 
staff to bring a budget amendment to the October 26 recessed meeting for approval 
contingent upon WCS getting the grant funding from NCDPI for ½ of a 3rd SRO position. 
Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 ENERGY PERFORMANCE CONTRACT:  Mr. Graham Lewis, Program Manager of Schneider 
Electric spoke to the Board.  (See presentation below).  
 
 Chair Phelps said it looks like Mr. Lewis is just looking for the Board’s commitment to this 
program. The new Board in 2021 would be responsible for doing a resolution showing this commitment. 
Commissioner Johnson asked if the LGC approved this type of performance contracting. Mr. Potter said 
yes they have already approved two (2) this year.  Commissioner Johnson asked would the County need 
legislative approval.  Mr. Potter said no, this is a different approval process. 
 



 

 Commissioner Johnson asked Dr. Carr if she had anything to add.  Dr. Carr said she is a steward of 
trying to be able to save money at the schools.  Mr. Potter said there is a process that has to take place for 
this type of contract.  
 
 Commissioner Sexton made a motion for Washington County Government to commit to 
working with WCS on this project with Schneider Electric and for a resolution to be brought back 
during early 2020-21.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Commissioner Walker said he sees this as a 
win-win situation.  Motion carried unanimously 4-0. 
 

 
 



 

 
    
 
 TRAVEL & TOURISM UPDATE:  Mr. Tom Harrison, TTA Director spoke to the Board. Mr. 
Harrison said that what looked ominous early in the year doesn’t look so bad now.  Washington County is  
influenced by the occupancy of the Outer Banks.  Visitors stage a part of their trip to stay here after they 
leave home rather than having to make a long drive all in one day.  When Dare County closed down in 
March, Washington County saw our occupancy rates drop drastically. The Domtar shutdown was 
postponed until July which also put a dent in the hotel’s cash flow. This year the Bear Festival Funds were 
not used since we couldn’t have the festival; however, the Bear Festival was held virtually with 
engagement that reached 46 states.  Mr. Harrison said Dare County opened back up, their occupancy rates 
were higher than the previous year and so was Washington County’s.  Mr. Harrison said he wrote a grant 
for almost $15,000 for magazine ads and billboards for hunting in our area. He just heard he received the 
grant and will be moving forward. Mr. Harrison said the TTA has never been in better shape with the 
increased occupancy tax and getting the grant.  Commissioner Johnson asked Mr. Harrison about direction 
signs.  He said he hadn’t put in for funding for that.  Commissioner Johnson said that DOT isn’t putting 
any money towards signs.  Mr. Harrisons said the TTA was asked to do a billboard to for Creswell 
promoting places in Creswell such as Pettigrew State Park.  Chair Phelps congratulated Mr. Harrison on 
getting the $15,000 grant and the billboards for Creswell.  Chair Phelps asked about the branding for the 
County since the Board did approve of having the Bear as the County’s logo.  Mr. Harrison said the 
renditions he has received, he hasn’t like them.  Mr. Potter said he has talked with Mr. Harrison about a 
new logo and once we get one the County will start to use it.  Commissioner Johnson asked about the 
Harbor Town grant.  Mr. Harrison said hasn’t heard back about it. Two boat captains were scheduled to 
come to Washington County in December, but with COVID they have been cancelled and hopefully they 
will come in the spring. 
 
 SHERIFF’S DEPUTY’S BODY CAMERAS AND DASH CAMS AND ELECTRONIC ANKLE 
MONITORS FOR PRISONERS:  Sheriff Johnny Barnes spoke to the Board.  He said he talked to 



 

different companies about the body cameras and electronic ankle monitors. The quotes for the body 
cameras are shown below. 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 
 
 Sheriff Barnes stated that the costs vary. Body cams would be more efficient than dash cams 
because the dash cams would only catch what is either in front or behind the car.  His deputies are usually 
going into houses or other areas out of their cars. Some body cameras have to be physically turned on and 



 

some come on automatically. Sheriff Barnes said he is looking at the mid-range ones from Sound Side and 
likes that they are local and can service the cameras. The County’s data would be stored on site at the 
County. 
  
 Commissioner Johnson asked Sheriff Barnes if Sound Side offers any warranty. Sheriff Barnes 
didn’t have the answer to the question and said he would check on it. 
 
 Chair Phelps made a motion to approve the quote from Sound Side for the body cameras 
with a budget amendment to be brought back to the Commissioners’ for approval at the October 26, 
2020 recessed meeting.   Commissioner Johnson seconded.  Discussion ensued.  Commissioner Sexton 
asked the Sheriff to make sure that the quote is still good.  Motion carried unanimously 4-0. 
  
 The Sheriff noted that he feels that the dash cams are prohibitively expensive and the cost is 
extraordinarily high for the data.  The dash cam quotes are shown below. 
 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
  
 The general consensus was that body cams would work better for the Washington County Deputies 
than the dash cams.   
 



 

 Next, Chair Phelps wanted to discuss electric ankle monitors.  Chair Phelps said that sometimes the 
judges want to release individuals but only if they have a “box”—an electronic ankle monitor.  Chair 
Phelps stated that two surrounding counties use these.  Sheriff Barnes said they are only sold in bulk as a 
minimum of ten (10).  Other counties also have a Deputy whose only job is to monitor the electronic ankle 
monitors.  Discussion ensued.  Please see the quote for electronic ankle monitors below. 
 

 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 Chair Phelps made a motion to approve the quote from Omnilink for the electronic ankle 
monitors with a budget amendment to be brought back to the Commissioners’ for approval at the 
October 26, 2020 recessed meeting.  Commissioner Walker seconded.  Discussion ensued.  Sheriff 
Barnes said he has to check on what type of person (Deputy vs Admin staff) that would need to be hired to 
monitor the electronic ankle monitors and said he would probably have to hire a Deputy to monitor these 
because if there was a problem, then that Deputy would be the one to go pick-up the offender.  Motion 
carried unanimously 4-0. 
 
 Mr. Potter also noted that he and Sheriff Barnes are working on getting the jail painted.  
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
MANAGER OR CLERK:   
 
 Chair Phelps said Early Voting starts 10 days from today.  Commissioner Johnson said folks 
can vote at BCCC WCC in Roper and the Maritime Museum in Plymouth. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson mentioned that Washington County recently had three (3) people 
retire from DSS:  Ms. Francine Hines, Ms. Zina Rhodes and Ms. Lynette Collins.  Chair Phelps asked 
the Clerk to put recognition for these retirees on the November agenda. 
  
 Mr. Potter said he is going to work with HR to have all retirees recognized by the 
Commissioners.   
 
 Mr. Potter said the Employee Appreciation Committee will be meeting this week discussing 
the Employee Appreciation Luncheon. 
 
 Ms. Bennett said she is working towards obtaining her Master Municipal Clerk (MMC) 
designation by attending virtual classes November 9-11, 2020 through the UNC-SOG. 
 
 Mr. Potter said citizens can still fill out the Census paperwork.  They can also call 1-844-330-
2020 (the Census phone number) and have their answered recorded. 
 
 Mr. Potter said with COVID-19’s Phase III he is looking into what services the County can 
resume. He is checking to see what surrounding counties are doing. 
 
 Ms. Dixon said she and Ms. Dunlow are moving forward with the bank conversion. 
Hopefully, Finance will be up and running with the new bank on November 2, 2020.   Ms. Dixon will 
give an update at the next meeting. 
 
 Chair Phelps reminded folks to wear their mask, keep a social distance of 6 feet and wash 
their hands. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson asked Mr. Potter if the plumbing in Detention had been taken care of.  
Mr. Potter said he will know more after his meeting with Ms. Blount, Sheriff Barnes, Ms. Moscato 
and Mr. Boone.  
 
 Chair Phelps stated that the reval public hearing, compensation study, and budget 
amendments will be on the agenda for the October 26, 2020 recessed Board of Commissioners’ 
meeting.                                                                                            



 

 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143.318.11(a)(6) personnel.  Commissioner Sexton seconded, motion carried unanimously 4-0. 
 

Back in Open Session, Commissioner Walker mentioned that Mr. Jimmy Jones has 
contacted him about Cardinal Lane again.  Chair Phelps said he had been contacted by Mr. 
Jones also. Mr. Potter said a map was found that was signed 2 months after the DOT date 
required in 1975. 

 
At 8:10 PM, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Walker made a motion 

to recess to October 26, 2020 @ 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room.  Commissioner 
Sexton seconded, motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 

D. Cole Phelps                     Julie J. Bennett, CMC, NCMCC 
         Chair        Clerk to the Board    
 
 
 


